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New Ring of Ten opened May 14th, 1921.
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CLOCKS.

A FIELD FOR NEW COMPOSERS.

The advice given to young composers last week by Mr.
Fred Dench, to try and fathom- some of the mysteries of
Cambridge Surprise Major, touches a question which has
many times been commented upon, but which still will
bear emphasis Mr. Dench tells us that unravelling Cam-
bridge will be found far more interesting than stringing
together courses of Bob Major, and those who have made
the attempt to delve in sone of the deeper mysteries of
peal construction will agree with him. The art of com-
position does not end, as some people seem to imagine, in
putting together sufficient course-ends of a method to make
the required number of changes. Touches and peals often
reach us which, on the face of them, are false and the
faults of which can sometimes even be seen without work-
ing out any figures, showing that the authors have made
no attempt at proof. It is true that everyone has to make
a beginning, but we would emphasise the need for all, who
are really anxious to become the authors of peals, to make
themselves first acquainted with the foundations of the
subject upon which they desire to work.

ki the simpler methods, and indeed, in some of the moro
complex, any new production is extremely difficult to
obtain; but investigation in methods which have been well
worked by others, should give the really enthusiastic com-
poser a keener zest to explore for himself the less known
paths of more complicated methods. There are bound to
be some failures, but in this, as in every walk of life, it is
the man who profits by his failures who will one day reach
success. Despite the work that has already been done,
there are still fields in which men can work, and in which
success will bring them campanological fame equally with
some of the masters who have gone before them. Cam-
bridge Surprise Major, among the older methods, is one
which, as Mr. Dench very rightly says, offers an alluring
task for those who really desire to investigate ground which
has not been so extensively explored as some which offered
greater chances of success with smaller effort.

It must not be supposed that the task is a simple one.
Great minds in the Exercise have devoted much time to
the work, but that is no reason why new effort should not
be made to evolve something new in a method which is
not only interesting to ring, but fascinating in the baffling
problem which its composition presents. As with Cam-
bridge, so with other Surprise methods. More investiga-
tion by composers would lead to the creation of wider
interest in some of.the good methods which are seldom, it
ever, practised, and one result would almost certainly be
the ringing of a far greater variety of the higher methods
on eight bells. In these enlightened days ringers ought
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BELLSIBELLS! BELLS!

Let the Music of the Bells celebrate Peace.

msss CHARLES CARR L

The OLD-ESTABLISHED firm of Bellfounders,

are now prepared to execute orders for all
kinds of Bells, singly or in rings. Their

* foundry is equipped with every modern
appliance for the manufacture of Bells of any
size, weight or note, all their Bells being
moulded and cast- on scientific principles;
while their knowledge of the 'Chemistry
of Metals' enables them to produce that fine
quality of Tone so much desired by all
* lovers of Bell Music.

tn their finishing and fitting shops they have installed the
most ‘ up-to-date' Tools and Machinery for the making

of Bell Frames and Fittings, so that they are in a
position to carry out the complete installation
of Peals of Bells for Churches, or Sets
of Chimes for Public Clocks, etc.

SPECIAL ATTENTION GIVEN TO THE RECASTING AND
KEHANGING OF EXISTING PEALS.

Orders may bo placed now for delivery at a
future date to suit the convenience of clients.

ALL MATERIALS CHEMICALLY ASD MECHANICALLY TESTED.
Catalogue anil Book of Testimonials post free on application!

THE WOODLANDS BELL
AND BRASS FOUNDRY,

SMETHWICK, BIRMINGHAM.

ESTABLISHED 1760.

JOHN NICOLL,

Church Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer.

60, QUEEN'S ROAD, PECKBAM, LONDON, S.E.

(Two minutes from Queen's Road Station, L.B.&S.C. Railway),

Late 18 Keeton’s Road, Bermondsey.

Makers to St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial In-
stitute, Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Albans, Lincoln, Durham, Peter-
borough, Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin St. Patrick’s,
Manchester and Worcester Cathedrals, etc., etc.
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not to be satisfied, as the majority of them seem to be,
with ringing only the methods which the past generation
achieved, and composers, in the same way, ought to strive
for something more than their predecessors attained, in-
stead of being content to dig among the accumulated
figures of more or less worked out methods, hoping to find
some trifle which others have overlooked.

TEN BELL PEAL.

. EPSOM, SURREY.
THE SURREY ASSOCIATION.

1921, in Thtce Hours mul Twenty-Five Minutes,
At the Parish Church,

A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB ROYAL, 5040 CHANGES;
Tenor 16 cwt. 2 Ib.

On Saturday, July

John Beams ... Treble Alfred Il. winch

John Howes ... 2 Amos Clark........ 7
George Marriner 3 John Il. White ... .. 8
Herbert J. Skelt 4 Cecil V. Erberson .. 9
Chas.W. R. Grimwood 5 Alszrt Harman ... ...Tenor

Composed by George Newson. Conducted by Alfred H.Winch.
This was the first peal of Royal on the bells.

EIGHT BELL PEALS.

WELLS-XEXT-TIIE-SEA, NORFOLK.
THE NORWICH AND IrtIWIUH ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, July 16, 1921, in Three Hours and Twenty-Five Minutes,
At the Chorch of St.
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5184 CHANGES;
Tenor t8 cwt.

Nicholas,

W illiam E. Bason ... Treble Arthur W. Baldwin... . 5
Charles S. Tuihill... 2 W ittiam B. Doncan ... .. 6
George Cooke .. .. 3 John A. Godfrey e T
Charles W ybrow ... 4 Robert VW Cooke ...Tenor

Composed and Conducted by W- R- Bason.

Rung on the occasion of Wells Regatta. The band wish to thank
the Rev. G. Il. N. Ingle for the use of the bells. It is 18 years since
the last peal was rung on these bells. The composition contains the
full combination of 4-5-6 in 5-6. ~.nd was rung for the first time.

OSFItINGH, KENT.
THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, July 16, 1921, iu Three Hours and Thirteen Minutes,
At the Church of SS. Peter
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 50S8 CHANGES;
Tenor 17 cwt. 1 qr 8 Ib. in F sharp.

Paul,

Clir.-sgt.J. Bennett, R.M. Treble Thomas Jcll 5
Samuel E. Taylor ... 2 Will,a-. Smce 6
Stanly B. Dobbib ... 3 ErnKstJ. DctlBIB .7
Frederick Richardson ... 4 William J. W alker.. ... Ttnor

Composed by G.Newson. Conducted by Clir.-Sgt. 3.Bennett, R.M.
First peal of Treble Bob as conductor.

EWELL, SURREY.
THE SURREY ASSOCIATION.

On Wednesday, July 20. 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty-Eight Minutes,
At the Parish Chukch,
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
Tenor 14 cwt.

Alfred H. Winch
Charles F Read
3 Frederick Lauer
Arthur J.lean
Conducted by Alfred H. Winch.
Rung with bells deeply muffled for Sir Gervas P. Glyn, lay Rector
of the Parish, who was laid torest in Ewell Churchyard on above date.

Holt's Ten-part
Jesse Beams .Treble
.2

John Beams.........

George Marriner ™
Edward T. G rove

LUTON, BEDS.—At the Parish Church, on July 20th the occasion
of the wedding of Mr. Rupert, rlummer to Miss Kennyth Biggs, two
quarter-penik of Stedinan Triples, in 41 and 46 minutes respectively:
L. A. Goodenough 1, C. Rollings 2, T. tjluckhuurn 3, H. Walker 4
B. Wilson 5, A. B. Sharman 6, A. King 7, W. Payne 8. One con-
ducted by L. A. Ooodnnoush and one by A. King.
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HEENE, WORTHING, SUSSEX.
THE SUSSEX OOUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Thursday, July 21, 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty-Five Minutes,
At the Chdrch of St. Botolph,
A PEAL OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, 5024 CHANCES;
Tenor 10J cwt.
.. Treble George H. Daynes .. 5
Bert Challen . 2 Frank Bennett ... .. 6
William Hillman .. 3 Alfred W Groves . 7
Henry Stalham .. 4 Edmond Il. Lindop ...Tenor
Composed by E. M. Atkins. Conducted by Frank Bennett.
Mr. G. Daynes was elected a life member of the Association,
previous to starting for the peal.

Joseph Farmer..

PRIVETT, HAMPSHIRE.
THE WINCHESTER DIOOESAN GUILD.

On Saturday, July 23, 1921, in Three Hours and Fifteen Minutes,
At the Chdrch of the Holy Trinity,

A PEAL OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, 5024 CHANCES;
Tenor 12 cwt. o qr. 15 Ib. in F.

John H. B. Hesse ... Treble eSgt. Geo. Gilbert, R.E. 5
Edwin J. Harding, Jon. ... 2 William R. M elville ... 6
Wiilliam Shepherd ......... 3 Charles Hazelden... . 7
Frederick W. Rogers .. 4 George Williams .. Tenor

Composed by Henry Dains. Conducted by George Williams.
* First peal of Double Norwich.

SOUTH WIGSTON, LEICESTERSHIRE.
THE MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, July 23, 1921, in Ttvo Hours and Fifty-Seven Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Thomas,
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
HTnifkK Pabker's Twelve-part. Tenor 14) cwt.

*C. Randle. ..Treble F. H. Dexter 5
S. COX,uurrreune 2 J. E. Clarke 6
A. H. Bell w3 J. L. Willars — 7
W. H. Homberstone .. 4 *). Carter ...Tenor

Conducted by J. E. Clarke.
( First peal as conductor. * First peal.

SIX BELL PEAL.

SOUTH WEALD, ESSEX.
THB ESSEX ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, July 23, 1921, in Two Hours and Forty-Seven Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Peter, .
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE DOUBLES, 5040 CHANGES;
Being 42 six-scores called in ten different ways. Tenor 15 cwt.

"Ernest Firbank ..Treble  Aifred Tarbon, Jon. ... 4
*Edwin D. Baker 2 W illiam Leggett ... 5
‘Albert Rainbird .. w3 eHerbert J. Pbnson..... Tenor
Conducted by Albert Rainbird.
First peal as conductor. « First peal. First peal on the bells, the

oldest of which dates back to 1664.

HANDBELL PEALS.

GUILDFORD, SURREY.
THB WINCHESTER DIOOESAN GUILD.
On Wednesday, July 13, 1921, in Two Hours and Thirty-Seven Minutes,
At St. Michael's, Joseph’s Road,
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
Holt's Ten-part.
Mrs. C. Hazeldejj .1—2 I Charles Hazelden
William Shepherd 3—4 |Willtiam R. Melville
Conducted by William Shepherd.
Witness : Mrs. Melville.
-First peal away from 7 —8 by Mrs. Hazelden.

...7—8
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GUILDFORD, SURREY.
THE WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Wednesday, July 20, 1921, in Two Hours and Twenty-Five Minutes,
At the Royal Grammar School,
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
Holt's Original. Tenor size 18 in G.

Wiilliam R. Melville ...i—2 I Charles Hazelden.
Alfred H. Polling . 3—4 | George W. Steere

Conducted by Alllred H. Polling.
Witnesses: Mrs. Pulling & Miss W. M. Howick.

CAMBRIDGE.
THE ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

On Thursday, July 21, 1921, in Two Hours and Twenty-Two Minutes,
At ii, Queen Anne Terrace,

A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5072 CHANCES;

Ernest G. Hibbens d1—21 Wiilfrid H.J. Hooton 5—6
H. G. Benson 3—4 1 ‘Miss V. Shorter . 7—8
Composed by E. M. Atkins. Conducted by W. H. J. Hooton.

*First peal in hand. Miss Shorter is the first lady to ring a p
"in hand ' for the Association.

CLAPHAM.
THE WINCHESTER DJOCESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, July 23, 1921, in Two Hours and Forty-Six Minutes,
At 63A, O1d Town,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN CATERS, 5043 CHANCES ;
Tenor size 16 in B flat.

Mrs. F. I.
Alfred H.

Polling

Composed by G. Lindo ff.
W itness:

Conducted by A. H. Polling.
Mrs. Polling.

CAMBRIDGE.
THE CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY GUILD.

On Saturday, July 23, 1921, in Two Hours and Four and a half Minutes,
In King's
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5040 CHANGES;

E. M. Atkins (St. Cath.) ...1—2 I R. O. Street (St. John's) ...5—6
H. G. Benson (King’s) ..3—4 | W. H. ). Hooton (Queens') 7—8

Composed by E. M. Atkins. Conducted by W. H. J.

College,

Hooton.

CAMBRIDGE.
THE CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY GUILD.

On Sunday, July 24, 1921, in Two Hours and Eight and a half Minutes,
In St. John's College,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5024 CHANGES;

R. O.street (St. John's) ...1—2 1 E. M. Atkins (St. Cath.) ...5—6
W. H.J. Hooton (Queens')3—4 | *H. G. Benson (King's) ...7—38

Composed by Fred Dench. Conducted by E. M. Atkins.
* First peal of Kent Treble Bob.

BRAINTREE RINGERS' OUTING.

The St. Michael's Guild of Ringers, Braintree, had their annual
outing on Saturday, July 9th. Starting at 8.30 a.m., they journeyed
by motor-car to Southend-on-Sea, calling on tljeir way at Great Bad-
dow. The ancient parish church, with its famous Jacobean pulpit
and sounding board, was inspected. No ringing was attempted, the
bells not being in good order. Proceeding to Rettendon, the party
were met by Mr. Jay, senr., and touches of Kent and Oxford were
brought round on the musical runs of six. Tho next tower visited
was Rayleigh, where the ringers had a tough'job, but a short touch
of Grandsire Triples was brought round. They were gratified to hear
that these bells are shortly to bo rehung in a new frame, and funds
are being raised to carry out the much-needed restoration. The last
tower visited was Prittlewell. Here were Messrs. Judd, Dudley, Wil-
son (2) and A. B. Wiffen in the church to meet the visitors. Some
excellent touches of Grandsire and Stedman Triples and Double Nor-
wich Major were brought round 01l the back eight of this excellent
ring of ten. The Guild lunched and had tea at Earon’s Restaurant,
ind enjoyed themselves on tho pier and other places of amusement
for the rest of the day, arriving home at 9.15 p.m. The Guild wish
10 thank the incumbents for the use of their bells, and the local ringers
for all necessary arrangements.
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WESTMINSTER RINGERS IN BUCKS.
THB DIARY OF A GLORIOUS. WEEK-END.

Row, brothers, row, the stream runs fast,
The rapids aro u6ai- and the daylight's past.

Stephen's Church, Rochester Row,
London, visited tlio county of Bucks for their annual holiday for
1921, 01l Saturday, July 9th, arriving at Slough at 8.15 am. The
party numbered fifteen, including th© World’'s bell founder aud the
microbe photographer, and they breakfasted al Lidstone’s Restaurant
in High Street, where a sound foundation was laid for the busy day
to follow. The programme is here given, to which a few notes have
been added by their counsellor, guide and friend, who pointed out
local places of historical interest. Needless to say, the round could
not have been carried through without tho motor-car, and two of
these wero bespoken with drivers who knew the country.

Slough, 9 to 10 a.m.—The visitors were received by Messrs. Smith,
Leader and Fussell, and each one was decorated with roses in his
buttonhole. Local industries were pointed out, such as Embrocation
(EUiman’s), Roses (Turner), Tabloid food (Horlick’s). Motor Cars
(Slough Trading Company), etc. The engines were started punctually
for the first lap, and the monument to the memory of the poet Gray,
at Stoke Church, was viewed.

Farnham Royal, 10 to 11 a.m.—Received at the tower by Mr. J. T.
Parker, and saw the resting-place of a Buck's ringer, who rang for
51 years on the birthday of tho late Queen Victoria; also the tomb
of Henry Dodd, who began life in this parish at the plough tail, and
amassed a fortune as the London dustman. He restored the church

The Guild of ringers from St.

tower. Hot as tho weather wa$, no one patronised the village pump,
with its long handle and open house, unrestricted by pussyfoot re-
gulations. *

Burnham, 11 to 12.—Met hore by Mr. G. Allder, and disturbed a
wedding part who had tied tho nuptial knot, and were signing the
register in the vestry. Made the acquaintance of the Six Bells Inn
at strictly twelve o’clock, to find a police-sergeant, lately stationed
at Rochester Row, as mine host. Obtained a good, view of the mighty
Cippenham Dump (600 acres in extent), known in the House of Com-
mons as the White Elephant.

Beaconsfield, 12 to 2 p.m.- -On this route, Burnham Beeches was seen
in all its summer glory, and men who ring in London for ‘ Ye Lord
Mayor had the privilege of driving through Lord Mayor's
Drive,” 20 miles out of town. Hot luncheon at the Sarncen’s Head was
duly appreciated, tho figure ends of the courses being Newton and
Oxborrow. A 1 Peck ' of trouble was caused by an inquiry as to why
was the Ox burrowing in Bucks? Because lie did not wish to go to
" Wiltshire ' -was the answer.

Messrs. R. Bucklund and C. C. Mayne met the company, who saw
tho resting-places of Waller (poet) and Burke (orator), who made
Westminster ring with his wonderful speeches. Tho local war
memorial, of uncommonly beautiful design, was of interest. Standing
at the corner of a cross-road, it consists of a tall shaft upon stepped
base, with a carved and pierced lantern at the top. It is all in stone,
and has_electric lights in the head, which are switched on at light-
mg-up time.

Hughenden, 3 to 4.—This section was made via Penn Church,
through tho Penn country. Perhaps some day a team from England
will go over to Pennsylvania and show our great forefathers in the
U.S. how we still ring bells in the old countrv. It would be a case
of* US ' to U.S., so why speak of Anglo-American unity? The partv
called at a farmouso which was named « Terriers '—perhaps Lord
Haldane took this name to heart when he*destroyed the old Volunteer
forces? Here Mrs. Evans and her daughters made up for the ab-
sence of one of the *Johns.*

Hughenden found Messrs. Evans, Janes and Stratford awaiting the
party beside the tower. Beaconsfield’s tomb and the Manor House he
once occupied, were pointed out, as well as the dving trout in the
almost dried up river that should be flowing through the park
meadows, now brown and parched.

High Wycombe, 5 to 6 p.m.—Received here by Messrs. R. Coles and
t. Boreham and reinforced by the arrival of the Master of t<
Oxford Guild (the Rev., C. W. O. Jenkyn), the general secretary (Mr.
C. J, B Williamson. = Touches of Stcdman
Cinques and Treble Twelve-In upon a good ring of bells was a re-
freshing change to the Major touches in the four standard Surprise
Methods hithertofattempted.

1 iuan I} during the day.
prise’ Our an liand by naming a new method ‘ Fabian Sur-

Tea at 6 oclock at the White Hart Inn found twenty 1 in’ and it
n h i Pry IimeVthe Caml)ridke M.A. acting P.A. at the head

1* t J«™ Peratures "ere greatly increased by sipping hot
tea (at about 8* degrees in the shade). The copling followed in the
courtyard when double-handed Cinques got gOIﬂg—somewhat short-
ened by the guides orders to 1 get on, please.

July 29th, 1921,

Marlow, 8 p.m.—This was the final stage, and tho visitors were met
by Messrs. Green and Coster. Here the well-known graceful suspen-
sion bridge, the weia and locks, and the distant woods, will always
afford an attraction, and more so to ringers, for tho church and the
* Two Browers ' aro divided by St. Peters Street that ends at the
riverside, with a landing-place for boating parties. The rafters of
this ancient inn have sheltered in its long history many a team of
ringers who came by stage coach or river barge. Seldom a year passes
nowadays without soveral such visits. A draught of its fine local
brewing (Wethered's) from a deep, cool cellar may be obtained, and
may cause envy to those who only read of these things.

The toast of tho evening was * Rochester Row, may they never be
recast,” at which the guide exclaimed. 4 R.R., please,’” to Passmore,
and then the handbells resounded. Thanks to the careful arrange-
ments of Host Truss the wlifelo of the double team of eights were
billeted for the night beneath the shadow of the old church spire,
chattering like a brood of young jackdaws, and in quite as unintelli-
gible language to most peoplo, except change ringers. Night came (or
was it morning?) like a welcome guest to end a happy day of sunshine-
and Surprise.

Sunday, July 10th.—Ringers may sing with the poet who wrote—

Of all the days that's in the week

| dearly love but one day,

And that's tho day that comes between

The Saturday and Monday,
for is not that the day when the true ringer puts forth his best for the
servioe of the church after years of patient learning aud practice in
his art? On this Sunday, Marlow people were regaled with unusual
Surprise flourishes for the customary services at the churoh. During
the day, Father Thames, an old Westminster friend, took the society
upon his broad bosom amidst the beautiful up-river scenery of Berks
and Bucks that contrast so much with the stately buildings lower
down its course. The holiday ended at Ealing by dispersal, each to
his respective home, after having been initiated into the mysteries of
an * Ancient Order of Golding ' during the train journey up. It is
questionable whether the Rochester rowers would have survived the
boating had not Rowbottom been at the helm. It was hoped to have
Joined in the public reception, proposed at Beaconsfield, to honour
the Premier of Australia during his visit on Saturday, but toe cares
of Empire necessitated the Premiers gathering at Chequers Court,
Bucks. Mr. W. M. Hughes, be it known, was formerly of St
Stephen’s Schools, and learnt to ring before going abroad, so that our
follow strings ‘ down under * should forge ahead and let us have
news of a peal or two when he comes home. * e

The secretary of the society desire® to thank, on behalf of the
R.R., all who contributed to their welfare on this outing, especially
the clergy and the good old steeplekeepers at the towers named.

W. H. F.

GIFTS TO A DEPTFORD TOWER.
RECORDS UNVEILED AT ST. NICHOLAS' CHURCH.

On Wednesday evening, July 13th, an interesting ceremony took
place in the tower of St. Nicholas’, Deptford, when the Vicar (tue
Rev. T. W. Pitman) unveiled two records, performances by the local
band. One was a board, given by Mr. C. R. Pope, of Staplehuret,
Kent, and recording the muffled peal of Grandsire Triples (Holt'6
Origmal), rung as a last token of respect to the late Mr. G. XV. Ford,
churchwarden at St. Nicholas’ for 14 years, ayd who was interred in
Brockley Ceijieterv on tho afternoon previous to the peal. It wa*
also Mr. Pope s first peal, and he gave the board as au appreciation of
the fact.

The other record was a drawing by Mr. T. Purkiss. a chorister ot
the church, recording the peal of Oxford Bob Triples (Dr. Carpenter*
One-part), the first in the method by all the band, except the con*
ductor. The framing of this splendid work was the gift of Mr. A
Hodge, an honorary member of the society.

The Vicar (who was accompanied by Mrs. Pitman, and his warden.
Mr. G. U. Keeys) said it gave him verv great pleasure to unveii
these two very beautiful records, because they marked much per-
severance and advance in the art of change ringing by the 60ciefcyf
also because he thought bell ringers, as well as the choir were co-
mimsters in the work of G<*1 and tho Church. It also gave'him great
pleasure to notice the regular attendance of the ringers at Divine
6eivice, not only those who belonged to the chpir, but the society

It may be added that there was no lack generaliy, who sat in different parts of the church. Tlio Vicar then
Perhaps one of our composer

nveiled the boards, and a short prayer, flowed by the Lord’s

rayer and the Blessing, was said. »

The captain (Mr. Churchwarden G. Il. Daynes) expressed thanks and
gratitude on behalf of tho Society, as well as himself, not only to
the Vicar, who always seemed pleased to do anything for ringers,
but to those whose gifts they much appreciated. * He also thanked
Mrs. Pitman, who had honoured them by her presenoe. He sincerelv
hoped tho society would still work together in harmony, no that a
no distant date still higher methods might be achieved and records
placed in the tower.
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A TRIP THROUGH SUSSEX.
EASTBOURNE RINGERS’ OUTING.

Oil Saturday, July 9th, an expectant body of ringers assembled
within the precincts of St. Saviour’s Church, Eastbourne, on the oc-
ecasion of tlio annual outiug. Travelling by motor charabanc, tile
party of eighteen were soon being pleasantly whirled along to the
first place of call—Mayfield. Here they found Mr. Miles with every-
thing in roadinoss for enjoyment. Tho bolls, a mixture of 1 some are
and some ain’'t,” as someone has quaintly put it, wero raised and set
going to a merry touch of Stedman Triples. This had not proceeded
very far before a disturbing noise was heal'd among the bells, and
upon investigation it was found that the clapper of the seventh hao
snapped off at the lower bolt hole. Nothing remained but to lower
the bells, and to thank the Mayfield friends for the trouble they had
taken 01l tho visitors, behalf, and to express deep regret at the un-
looked-for mischance of a broken clapper. After a double-handed
plain course of Grandsire Caters on the handbells, the party proceeded
on their way to Tunbridge Wells, which was reached at 11.45 a.m.,
St. Peter’s being tho trysting place. Here in attendance was Mr.
Latter, who ljad kindly prepared for the visitors. The Vicar extended
a hearty welcome in the belfry, whore subsequently old friends in
Messrs. S. M. (Troon and F. White, joined in the ringing. Grandsire,
Stedman, Double Norwich and Kent Treble Bob were tapped off in
good style. Luncheon was taken at Carpenter's Restaurant, and, the
inncr-man being sufficiently refreshed, the party proceeded to Withy-
ham, where tho bells were set going to the tune of Stedman and
Double Norwich. They then travelled by way of Eridge and Crow-
borough to Southover, Lewes, for tea at the house of Anne of Cleves
a building dating back to the 15th century. The upper portions of
this old structure is in a very dilapidated condition ot present, but
it is understood that the hand of tho restorer is about to take the
matter up with a view to renovation. Stedman Caters and Triples
were rung on Southover bells, with an old friend, in the person of
Mr. Bob Dawe, and this closed the day’s proceedings, in so far as
ringing was concerned. A visit to Southover is not complete without
a. visit to ‘' Ye Olde Kinge's ' Head, where a hearty welcomo is always
extended to ringers by the genial hostess, Mrs. Goldsmith. After
about 90 miles’ run, the party reached Eastbourne at 9.50 p.m. The
journey, through some of the loveliest scenery in Kent and Sussex,
was thoroughly enjoyed, and with the exception of the clapper inci-
mdent at Mayfield, the outing was most successful from every point of
view. Tlie Rev. Lawrence Hands (curate) and Col. A. A. Oakden
(churchwarden), of St. Saviour’s, accompanied the party, whose best
thanks aro due to those at the various towers visited for having all in
readiness, and to the incumbents for placing the bells at the visitors’
disposal, which contributed in greatest measure to the pleasure of the

trip. The ringers forming the party included Messrs. Akehurst,
Baber, Faulkner, A. Gower, E. Gower, B. Hobbs, G. House, Mer-
chant, Pankhurst. Penfold, J. Sharp, senr., J. Sharp, junr., W. D.

Sniith, Stokes and W. H. Ware (verger).

110 MILES THROUGH SUFFOLK.

On Saturday, July 9th, the members of St. Margaret’s Society,
LeiBton, held their annual outing. West Suffolk was chosen for the
route this voar, when more fresh towers were added to the list. Leaving
Leiston at 6.50, in Mr. W. Fowoll’'s charabanc, Stowmarket was the
first call, and was reached via Ipswich. Here Superlative and Suffolk
Surprise and Stedman Triples wero rung. Proceeding to Bury St.
Edmunds, St. Mary's wfcs viteited before dinner, and Cambridge,
Double Norwich and Stedman Triples rung. These bells aro a grand
peal, with a tenor 27 cwt. After dinner, to which, needless to say, full
justice was done, the tower of St. James’ Cathedral was the centre
of attraction. Here Treblo Ten and Stedman Caters were rung on
the magnificent peal of ten, with a tenor 30 cwt. Leaving Bury, the
party made for what iB considered the best- peal of eight in the county,
viz., Lavonham, which was reached in good time. This grand peal,
with Miles Gray’s masterpiece tenor, were set going to Bristol, Lon-
don a>id Stedman Triples, two of the local company taking part. A

look round tho church, of which Lavonham people are very proud,
brought tho time for departuro, and in due course Hadleigli was
reached. Here another fine peal was found, and Cambridge, Super-

Several of the local people were in-
terested in tho family of ringers, and a touch of Stedman Triples
was rung with all the brothers Bailey taking part. Woodbridge
should have been the laist call, but time would not admit of stopping
here, and homo was reached at midnight, after a journey of 110
miles. The members of the society wish, through m The Ringing
World,” to thank the incumbents of the various towers for the U66 ot
tho bells, and all those who helped to make the outing successful.

lative and Stedman tapped off.

LEE, LONDON.—At the Church of St. Margaret, 01l July 20th (St.
Margaret’'s Day), before service and dedication of war memorial, 720
Grandsire Doubles (6 120’s different callings): J. Hodges 1, W, G.
Pinnigar (conductor) 2. A. Hoile 3. C. Moulton 4, H. Brasher 5, J.
Daftus 6, C. Pavne 7, H. Heisterman 8 (7, 6, 8 behind).
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GRIMBSY RINGERS AT SURFLEET.
A LONG DAY S OUTING IN LINCOLNSHIRE.

On Thursday, July 7th, the combined societies of 51. James’ and
St. Andrew’s, Grimsby, with their wives and friends, to the number
of 30, journeyed by motor charabanc to South Lincolnshire for the
annual outing. A start was made at 7.30 a.m., Louth being reach""
an hour later. From hero tho fine scenery Of the Wolds and the
undulating country made this part of the drive full of interest, and
was much admired. The first stop was made at Horncastle at 9.45,
several of the local ringers being at hand to receive the party. Soon
the fine ring of six of the Parish Church were going to Stedman
Doubles Treble and Plain Bob Minor, and then, at 10.30, the drive
was continued at Boston, where an excellent dinner was in readiness,
and fully appreciated. Afterwards, the Parish Church was visited.
Ringing here not being on the schedule, little time was lost before a
start was made for Kirton, 4 miles on. Here the ringers were met by
Mr. Rupert Richardson, of Surfleet, and without delay the fine-toned
ring of eight were going to Double Norwich Major, followed by
Grandsire and Stedman Triples. Up once more, the party soon
covered the last eight miles to Surfleet, the headquarters for the day,
and wero received by the Rev. H. Law James, who extended a very
hearty welcome, while ringing friends from Peterborough, including
Miss Phyllis Hare, Mr. Tebbut, Mr. Waldou and Mr. Jutson, came
specially to lie with the party. Mr. James took the visitorsjn hand,
first explaining many interesting details in the history and archi-
tecture of the old church. The beautiful light ring of ten bells in
the belfry wore then raised in peal, and the chief ringing of the day
now began. Grandsire and Stedman Caters were brought round, 60me
of the party getting their first ringing on ten bells. In due time tea,
kindly provided by Mr. Rupert Richardson, was thoroughly enjoyed.
Afterwards there was a further visit to the tower, and touches of
Grandsire and Stedman Caters and Bob Royal wore brought round,
the ladies meanwhile visiting the Vicarage gardens. The start for
home was made at 7.30, after hearty cheers for those friends who
had done so much to make the outiug a big success. The last call
of the trip was Sibsey, and once more, at the ropes, Grandsire and
Stedman Triple* were duly brought round. The party were cordially
greeted by the Vicar, who stayed 3uring the ringing, and afterwards
explained much interesting matter concerning his bells, some of which
are of pre-Reformation date. With a journey still before them of
nearly 50 miles, the party began the final stage at 9.30 p.m., Grimsby
being reached at 12.45 a.m., bringing to a close a happy and memor-
able outing. The party take this opportunity of thanking the various
incumbents for "the use of their bells, Mr. R. Richardson for the ar-
rangements for tea, and to all who contributed to make the day a
thoroughly enjoyable one.

SALOP SIX-BELL TOWERS.

On Saturday, July 2nd, six members of the St. Chad’s Society paid
a visit to the Church of St. John, at Ruyton-Eleven-Towers, and
rang 720 changes, consisting of 360 Grandsire Doubles and 360 flain
Bob: J. E. Lilley 1, R. Pole 2, S. Snelson 3, D. J. Boucher 4, C. R.
Lilley (conductor) 5, T. Renholds 6; also 240 Canterbury Pleasure. Jfc
was intended to start for a peal, but after inspecting the bells, screw-
ing up the frame and splicing ropes, the above was the result. Tho
ringers were congratulated by the Rector (the Rev. W. D. Craven)
on the excellent striking. He was surprised the visitors were able to
ring the bells in the condition they were in. It afterwards trans-
pired that the Rector was himself an old ringer, and he hopes to get
tho bells put right at a future date. They were made a peal of
six by Taylor and Co., of Loughborough, in the year 1858, and some
of them date back to 1592.

On tho return journey the ringers called at the Church of All
Saints, Baschurch, where permission to ring was readily obtained
from tho Rev. Druce, but the tower was found to contain only four
bells, although (here are pits for 6ix. The bells have been reoently
rehung by Taylor and Co., the Rector hoping to get two trebles
shortly. Some Bob Singles wero rung, and the 1 go ' of the bells
was found to be excellent. Afterwards a touch of Grandsire on
handbells was rung to the delight of the locals.

At Leaton, Salop, on Saturday, June 26th, at Holy Trinity
Church, a quarter-pcal of Doubles (five and a half 120’s' of Grand-
sire, four of Plain Bob and one of Canterbury Pleasure) was rung by:
H. Baggley 1, J. E. Lilley 2. S. Snelson 3, R. Pole 4, C. R. Lilley
(conductor) 5.

LANCASHIRE SURPRISE.

Too late for insertion in our last issue, wo received from the Rev.
H. Law James tho following communication:—

1 The method published this week, and called Lancashire Surpriso,
should not be so called, because that implies that it is the same
method as Lancashire Surprise Minor, which it is not. The composi-
tion is my peal of London called in Gloucester in 1896.
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NEW BELLS AT EARL SHILTON, LEICESTERSHIRE.
A FINE PEAL OF EIGHT.

Earl Shilton Parish Church now lias tho proud possession of a
melodious ring of eight bells. Up to some months ago there hung 111
the tower five old bells in a dilapidated timber framework, and the
fittings, etc., of these bells wero quite worn out and unfit to carry
tho bells with safety. It was decided to send tho bells to the famous
foundry of Messrs. Taylor and Co., at Loughborough to be refitted
aud rehung, and three new bells added to complete tho octave. Jl
was then found, however, that these old bells cont ,ied such graye
defects, and were so far out of tune and discordant tn their harmonic
tones, that the only satisfactory course to take would be to recast the
whole into a musical and pleasing peal. This work has now been car-
ried out, and the three new bells added, tho result being a sweet an
pure-toned ring of bells. Tho effect of this perfectly tuned peal is
simply marvellous, when compared with that of the old peal.

The tenor of the poal now weighs nearly 12 cwt., which is 1J cwt.
heavier than tho old bell, and the total weight of the eight odb

with their fittings is over six tons. The fittings are of modern d ign,
and contain all those improvements which have been eftccteu by
Messrs. Tavlor in recent years, including patent ball bearings. Tho

framework," which carries the bolls, is very strong and massive in con-
struction, being of cast iron on stout steel foundation girders, de-
signed so that the strain placed on the tower by the swinging of the
bells is reduced to an absolute -minimum. The eight bells bear the
following inscription:—

Treble—To the memory of Marion Bradbury by her husband, A. U.
Bradbury, Earl Shilton, 1921.

2nd.—Harrv Orton. C.C., D.C.,, P.C. Gave me, 1921.

3rd.—I1 ring to Glory of God and in the honour of the thousand
Shilton men who joined the colours and upheld Britain’s honour in
the great war, 1914—1918.

4th.—The children cry Hosannah in the Highest. Cast 1875. Recast
1921,
5th.—Tho. Bernard and Tho. Wileman, churchwardens. Tho. Clay
made me 1711. Recast 1921.

6th.—Come, Holy ones, hasten to worship the Lord.
Recast 1921.

7tli.—Newcombe, of Leicester, made me 1606. Recast 1921.

Tenor.—Cast 1875. 'Recast 1921. J. Slade Mauglian, Vicar. Edwin
Harry Gilbert, Abraham Abbot, Churchwitrdens. Earl Shilton, 1921.

The dedication of the new ring of bells and the institution of the Rev.
H. V. Williams as Vicar took place on Friday, July 15th, by the Rt.
Rev. Lord Bishop of Peterborough. The ceremony of dedication was
first performed, and the bells then rang out for a few minutes, in
LOunds. the ringers being the Shilton band.

CHURCH BELLS A SYMBOL.

The Bishop of Peterborough, who dedicated the bells and instituted
the new Vicar, preached from the words: ' Other sheep | have, which
lire not of this fold: them also I must bring, and they shall hear My
roioe.” For centuries, his Lordship said, there had been a company
i>f people at Earl Shilton who had heard the voice and responded to
the call, who had worshipped Christ and sought to extend His king-
dom. The very nam« * Earl Shilton ' recalled a familiar figure of
English history, and took them back to some of the great men of
Leicestershire like Earl Simon, John o’ Gaunt, and others. In this
Britain of ours for over 1,600 years people had heard the voice and
tried to respond to the call. Christ was counting on men and
women to-day to echo their voice to the world, to sound His call, and
draw men into His kingdom. Church bells were a kind of symbol and
sacrament of that fact. They pealed forth from the tower so that
all men heard the sacrament of the corporate voice of the fellowship
they represented. They were a very ancient piece of accompaniment
to church worship. Like some other parts of their English churches
many were a thousand years old. He once went to see the remains
of a famous abbey at Sunderland, where a mighty figure of their
church history, the Venerable Bede, lived and worshipped. In 680
the church bells were used for that abbey and called people to worship.
Another famous abbey, not far from where he now lived, dated back
to the 10th century, and there was a record of a peal of bells, which
the old chroniclers stated was as harmonious as any to be found in
England.

Cast 1875.

THE COMRADESHIP OF RINGING.

Bell ringing had always been a peculiar delight of the English
people. There was no such thing as change ringing known 01l the
Continent. Change ringing was peculiar to tho English people and
the English Church alone. Why was it English people developed a
sense of change ringing? It was due to that common instinct of sport
which made men like to do something together—to pull together and
to plan and scheme. It was essentially a comradeship to ring out the
voice which called men and women of the district, to the worship of
God. His Lordship added that it was the first time in his experience
that he had taken part in a service in which was combined the dedi-
cation of bells, the dedication of a new priest, and the dedication of
the people to their work in the advancement of fellowship of the
Kingdom of God. |If it was for the bells to echo the voice sounded in
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Galilee long centuries ago, through which the most sinful came as if
by irresistible attraction—if it was the function of the bells to echo,
that voice and call men to His presenoe, then it was peculiarly so of
the priest aud pastor of the parish, not to call attention to his own
personality or to what ho preached or how he worked; not to be the
centre of attraction, but to call men and women to the only centre
of attraction, the Saviour, tho friend, tho Master, and tho Christ,
whoso work, curiously enough and naturally enough would be inti-
mately linked with the bells. Their new priest would minister to
them with the voice of sympathy. Tho priest of tho parish was not
merely the official priest. He was what 110 ought to be, and could be,
their most faithful and intimate .friond. He asked peoplo to dodicato
themselves afresh to Christ.

After tho service, M.C.A. representatives from Burton-on-Trent,
Barwolt, Croft, Hinckley, Leicester, Kirkby Mallory, Peckleton,
Sharnford, Sapcote, Stoney Stanton, Wigston, took part in ringing, and
the bell founders woro represented by Mr. J. Oldham. Tho work has
been most ably carried out by Messrs. Taylor to the satisfaction of all.
The methods rung at tho opening were Grandsire and Stodman Triples,
Bob Major and Double Norwich Major. The bells were .open for ring-
ing on Saturday, the 16th, when members and friends, in addition to
those present on Friday, attended from Derby, Kirkby Muxloe, Stoke
Golding, and Burbage. Methods rung ranged from Grandsiro Doubles
to Treblo Bob Major.

Congratulations aro extended to Mr. R. Lane, the bell-hangor, who
can now boast of hanging a peal of eight bells in his nativo place,
which is something to be proud of. Tho members of the M.C.A-. wish
to convey, through ' The Ringing World,” their best thanks to the
Shilton ringers for their kind invitation to help in opening of the
bells, and also to extend their best thanks to the Vicar for giving per-
mission for ringing on Saturday.

Mr. Harry Briggs, of Stoney Stanton, who took part in tho ringing,
is tho one survivor of a band of ringers who opened tho poal of flvo
bells at Earl STiilton 46 years ago. Seventy-one years of age, he hsi
been a ringer at Stonoy Stanton Church for 55 years.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
EASTERN DISTRICT MEETING.

Tho third quarterly meeting of tho Eastern District was held it
Howden, on Saturday, July 16th, and was attended by about 50
members, representing towers at York, Selby, Hull. Goolc, Beverley,
Market Weighton, Thorne and Hatfield, Despite the hot weather,
the visitors availed themselves of the privilege of ringing the bei-s to
various methods throughout the afternoon. The noble Collegiate
Church, dedicated to St. Peter, possesses a fine lofty lantern tower,
which is observed by travellers for many miles around, and is lighted
bv tall and handsome windows, of the purest Perpendicular character
In the ringing chamber was noted a beautiful tablet, to the memory of
three ringers who had made tho great sacrifice in the war, which was
dedicated on Easter Monday last.

A short service was held at 4 p.m. in the church, with an address
by the Vicar (the Rev. A. Waring), who gave the ringera a very
hearty welcome on their first visit during his vicariate. He said that
ringers were co-workers with the clergy, and were doing real work
for tho Church. Ho also pointed out how bells entered into the
common life of the people, by ringing on oocasions of joy and sorrow,
and also by calling them to lhe house of prayer. He concluded by
asking God’'s blessing on the work of the association.

A sumptuous tea was afterwards partaken of, to which full justioe
was done. The business meeting followed, and was held in the Parish
Room, presided over by tho Vicar, in tho absence of tho vico-pres;-
dent (Mr. A. E. West), who was unfortunately unable to be present.
Eight new members were elected, viz., D. Rimes and S. J. Dawson
' m7'8 Hull: H. Wiles, All Sahits', Hull; H. Crowe and H. Mar-
shall Hatfield; A. Talbot, Hemingborough; G. Braithwaite and F.
Braithwaite, St. Mary’s, Beverley.

Two places for the next meeting were put forward—Pocklington
iand7 North Cave, and the latter place was decided upon by 15 vote*
0

A hearty vote of thanks was accorded the Vicar for the use of the
bells, and for his instructive address at the service, and the thanks
of the meeting were also given to the local ringers for their verr
excellent arrangements.—This concluded the business, and the ringere
adjourned to the tower for further ringing.

GET YOUR BY
RINGING THE R|NG|NG LAE(')'\F',$
FRIENDS WORLD EVERY

TO SUPPORT WEEK.
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AT SQUIRE PROCTOR'S TOWER.
SAFFRON WARDEN RINGERS' EXCURSION.

On Monday, July 18th, ihe Saffron Walden Society nad a motor
charabanc excursion, the primary object of which was to visit the
world-famed Bennington ringers. In our party wo wore pleased to
have tho company of Mr. H. J. Tucker, of Bishop's Stortford. A call
was made at Barkway, where there is a pretty ring of eight, the
bells being in perfect order, as they have only recently boen increased
to the octave; and Stedman, Double Norwich and Cambridge were
heard to advantage. Then on through leafy lanes and winding roads,
through Buntingford, and several other places, to the goal of Benning-
ton; tho former home of the Surprises and the grand old Squire
Proctor and his illustrious men. Here we had the great pleasure and
honour of meeting three of the survivors of that talented band, viz.,
Messrs. John Ititchener, Leonard Chapman and Samuel Page, whose
combined ages, we learned, was 220 years; and iu som* of the ringing
these veterans took part. #

Tiie bells w*ero soon sounding out the methods in which, in years
gone by they had made history, viz., Stedman, Double Norwich.
Superlative, Cambridge and London, it beifig jokingly remarked that
if the ringing failed it certainly could not be the fault of the bells,
as they wero not strangers to any difficult methods!

We were sorry to find that the Rector was unwell and could not be
present, but tho Rev. C. S. Chapman kindly met us with a hearty
welcome, and conducted us to the public hall, where a splendid dinner
awaited us, at which he himself presided, and even assisted to seciir»
our comfort. We are also greatly indebted to him for a bountiful tea
and to the ladies who so pleasantly looked after our needs. Ma
expressions of our thanks were accorded to all who had troubled to
make the visit to Bennington so enjoyable. It w'as with feelings al-
most of regreE that wo were compelled to obey the call of time U
continue our journey on to Braughing, another spot hallowed by many
associations.

Here, also, ringing was enjoyed, despite the 90 in the shade outside,
nnd perhaps we may hazard an opinion that inside it might represent
the temperature in the sunshine.

Next, Bishop’'s Stortford provided us with an opportunity for Sir*"
man Caters, which we were pleased to avail ourselves of, this being
our final effort for the day. Wo desire to heartily thank the incum-
bents who so readily gave permission with good wishes for our success,
and the several ringers who met us and had everything ready for our
enjoyment: and hope to have a return visit from any who may liavr
an opportunity of coming to Saffron Walden, when we will endeavour

John Taylor
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to provide for them, as far as is in our powers, the same enjoyment
and satisfaction which we appreciate so highly from their i:n]ands.
LT,

X.

BRIDGEND RINGERS' TRIP.

On Wednesday, July 13th, the ringers of Bridgend, Glam., together
with their wives and a few friends, visited Chepstow and Monmouth
for their annual outing. ‘ Go ' was called at 8 a.m., and after a nice
run, tho White Lion, Chepstow, was reached at 11.40, and, here, later
on, tho party sat down to dinner. The next item was a move to the
belfry, where they found everything ready, and some of the local
men waiting- Unfortunately the party did not get much good rins-
ing here. They found that the ropes run round anti-clockwise, and
there is also a very long draught, so different to their own tower.
Perhaps it would also bo well to put some of the blame on the
weather, and a little on the White Lion; but there is no doubt
Bridgend bells are a lovely eight, and for * go 1 rank among the bent
ill th© county. While ringing was in progress, tho ladies of the party
found plenty to interest them in and around the church, and no
doubt they would have made a close inspection of the shops in the
town had it not happened to be early closing day. Leaving Chepstow
soon after three o'clock, tho excursionists had a splendid ride to the
old town of Monmouth, through the lovely scenery of the Wye Valley.
After having a look round the grand old church, tea was partaken of
at the Dorothy Cafe. Here again the course ends rolled up in fine
style. A visit was then paid to ihe tower, where again everything
was found in readiness, but as a thermometer near the church was now
standing at 87 degrees in the shade, short touches of Stedman an'i
Grandsire were the order. It was originally intended to spend the
remainder of the day in Cardiff, but for various reasons this part ot
the programme was abandoned, and the evening spent in the old
town. The return journey was made through Raglan and Usk. This
was a four hours’ ride, so that it. was in the early hours of the 14th
when tho party arrived once more at Bridgend, everyone having had
k most enjoyable day. The ringers take this opportunity of thanking
the Vicars of both Chepstow and Monmouth for the use of the bells;
also the local ringers for having everything ready, especially Mr. T.
I1. Jones, of Monmouth, who spent so much time with them.

C. H. P.

EASTBOURNE.—Sussex County Association. At St. Saviour’s
Church, on May 5th /Asoonsion Day), for evening service, a quarter-
peal of Stcdman Triples (1.260 chansres); W. D. Smith 1 G. H. Howse
2. G. Penfold 3, A. C. Pnnkhurst- 4, G. W. Stokes 5, E. Bray 6, E.
Gower (conductor) 7. ,T. H. Sharp 8.

& Co.,

LOUGHBOROUGH.

THE

LEADING BELL FOUNDERS
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BELFRY GOSSIP.

Oxford, where the Diocesan Guild held its annual festival oil Satur-
day last aud dedicated the war memorial to its fallen members, pos-
sesses many rings of belle, there being famous peals at some ot tile
colleges. They do not, however, all 1 go ' as well as ringers would
like them to, nor are they often available, for in term time, ot course,
tho ringing of the bells would bo too groat a distraction for the
students.

It is somewhat strange that the tower of Christ Church, associated
with Oxford Cathedral, is an unconsecrated building, but so it is.
As most ringers know there arts hero twelve bells, with a tenor ot
approximated 35 cwt, The foundation of the peal was six ancient
bells brought from Osene.v Abbey, and named respectively Hautclere,'
¢ Clement,” ‘Austin,” ‘ John,” * Mnry ' and ' Gabriel. Thbe present
ninth and tenth are probably tho old fourth and fifth of this ancient
ring.

Just as the Winchester Guild are augmenting their Cathedral peal
to twelve by the gift of ttfo trebles, so the Cathedral at Oxford bad
its twelve made up from the old ten by the gift of two trebles by
the Diocesan Guild. This was in 1897 in honour of tho Diamond
Jubilee of Queen Victoria.

The other bells date back to ancient days, and peals were rung on
them nearlv two hundred years Hgo. llearne, in his diary, mentions
a visit to Oxford of a party of London ringers who walked all the way
from London, and arrived at Oxford on Whit-Sunday, 1<33- Oil the
Wednesday following they attempted a peal at Christ- Church, but
after rinffing for over two hours the gudgeons of the tenor broke.

This same band made two attempts for peals at New College on
the following davs. On the Thursday they rang three-quarters or an
hour, when a broken rope put an end to their efforts, vvhile a similar
fate befel the attempt the next day, after two hours. Imagine walk-
ing all the way from London to Oxford for thisl

The same historian records a peal of 5.040 Grandsiro Caters rung by
Oxford men at Christ Church on New Years Day, 1734. and thisrmist
be one of the verv earliest criticisms of a peal. Hearne says: llie
Oxford ringers made many mistakes, so that 'twas expected they must
have given over several times. | did not hear them till they had
been at it about three-quarters of an hour, but afterwards | heard
them quite out' tTll they had done, and | observed fifty-two faults m
the ringing, nine of which were considerable ones. Howevpr. take it
altogether, .ltwas excellent ringing, and they may glory of it. the
most considerable fault was occasioned by Dr. Gregory. llegius 11 -
fessor of Modern History, and Student of Christ Church, who broke
in upon the ringers to their great disturbance.’

The bells were removed from tho central tower of the Cathedral to
the tower near the Dining Hall, in 1872.

There is to be a bell ringing contest at Ecclesfield Parish Church,
Yorks (the Minster of the Moors), on Bank Holiday. Fourteen teams
have entered, and the first prize is valued at £12. Other prizes valued
at |£8, £5 ajid £3, and cash prizes of 30s. and 2ls. are also ottered!
The contest is announced to begin at. 8 a.m., and during the day there
are to be exhibitions of handbell ringing in the Gatty Memorial Hall.

The test will be 720 changes for each company, and Messrs. Joseph
Broadley and Tbhos. Lambert will lie tho judges. Ecclesfield is an ideal
place to spend a day.

In reply to ' Research, tlie weight of the lenor of the lightest
peal of twelve in Great Britain is 15j cwt., this being at the Waterloo
Tower, Quex Park, Kenu The lightest tenor of twelve in a church
tower rests, we believe, between Cheltenham and Christ Church, West
Bromwich, which are. each between 22£ and 22j cwt.

To William Shipway. born at Bath in 1760, the Exercise owes a
great deal, and he will over remain as one of the pioneers of tho
art of ringing, and bo remembered for all time by his * Art of Ring-
ing,” published in 1816.

July 29tli is the anniversary of Jiis first arrival in London, he finding
his way to the Metropolis in the year 1785. He gives as his
‘"principal motive ' for going to London, that ‘' although Bath had a
respectable and able hand of ringers, yet tho Art did not improve bo
rapidly as be wished.” In tho Metropolis he first joined the -Junior
Society of Cumberlands. * .

Ono of the earliest peals of Grandsirc Major was rung on July 30th,
1792, at SS. Peter and Paul’'s Church, Aston. It was also, probably,
the longest in the method at that time, viz., 7552, but it was surpassed
about eighteen months later by an 8,000 at St. John’s, Dcritend, Bir-
mingham.

Mr. Joseph Milner and Mr. Charles Il. Leman are requested to send
their addresses to Mr. J. D. Matthews, 130, Clonmorc Street, S.W .18.
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OXFORD GUILD FESTIVAL.
BY ONE WHO WAS PRESENT.

The Festival of the Oxford Diocesan Guild in the fortieth year of
its existence will surely be long remembered. The weather was fine,
.and, though warm enough, was made enjoyable by a strong breeze.
The place of meeting was Oxford, the centre of this great Diocese, and,
therefore, the Guild was well represented. Bishop Shaw, an honorary
and honoured member of the Guild, acted for the Dean and Chapter
«of Christ Church in giving a welcome to the Guild to use the Cathe-
dral for the service, the Chapter House for the business meeting, and
the dining hall for the luncheon. The number present could not have
been far short of 200.

CHRIST CHURCH CATHEDRAL, OXFORD.
Where the Diocesan Guild’s War Memorial was Unveiled.

But the special feature of this festival was the unveiling aud dedi-
cating of the Guild memorial tablet ou the walls of the Cathedral
cloisters, which followed the festival service at 11 a.m. The sermon
was preached by one whom every ringer delights to honour, the Rev.
G. F. Coleridge, Hon. Canon of Christ Church, Fresideut of the
Central Council, and one of the founders of the Diocesan Guild.

Ho took his text from 1 Maccabees ix. 10, * God forbid that I should
do this thing and flee away from them: if our time be coine let us
die manfully for our brethren, and let us not stain our honour,5 upon
whicfh ?ﬁ based a fine exhortation 0ll the duty and «dorv of living out
-our fai

Supreme sacrifice.” Then came the procession to tne Cloisters, wnere
Bishop Shaw unveiled and dedicated the memorial tablet. It is exe-
cuted in a very fine piece of Portland stone, which bears the simple
but forceful inscription: * Rememl>er the men of the Oxford Diocesan

TQii_ilz;AOS*hurc’i Kell RinSers who bought and fell in the great war.

At tho foot is carved a laurel wreath, and at the top a church bell
on its stock, with ropes and sallies representing, surelv, not onlv the
oadge of their particular service to the Church of God', but

1 the great crossbeam of wood
Representeth the Holy Rood
Upon which.Jike a bell our hopes are hung,
. . . and the Rope with it« twisted cordage three.
Denoteth the Scriptiral. Trinity
. Of Morals and Symbols and History.*

And as the BTshop proceeded with the ceremony, the Kook wherein
€Md sretary "antS °f fal,en "™rB piesonte<l °Peu v the
rJK tcrJ ho Blessing, the Last. Post was sounded b- buglers from
~ongVnotes S 0,(1 weHlls >ie,d!In8 themselves readily to the clear

. . o *km' > _TM< i
which aU the bells in Oxford—so it seemed-wereurcet'ri(ngmg.»"
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LONDON SURPRISE ROYAL.

To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—Mr. Bramble is not alone in being unable to believe Mr.
Trollope's statements with regard to ‘' London.” Had he been content
to say that he had produoed London Royal in thirty minutes | could
have been content, but when he goes on to say that he also produced
London Maximus that is quite another matter, for I know quite well,
and am prepared to prove, that it is impossible to obtain a lead of
London ou twelve bells.

Consequently I am forced to believe that there is something wrong
with Mr. Trollope's system.

I am quite in agreement with Mr. Trollope that ‘ the closest ever
produced ' is no use. That is the reason that X kept on until I had
produced tho real thing, and | am quite prepared to give a clear and
satisfactory proof that the figures that X have given are ' Londori
Surprise Royal.'—Yours truly, E. BANKES JAMES.

Seafield Park, Fareham.

HEREFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.

INSCRIPTION FOR THE MEMORIAL BELL.

The postponed festival of the Hereford Diocesan Guild was held at
Stokesay on Saturday, July 23rd. After some touches ou the peal of
six, Divine service was held, when the Guild’'s special form was Used
for the first time. The Rev. H. S. T. Richardson (Rector of Hopesayl
conducted the service, and also preached an escellent sermon on Rom.
xii. 10, In honour preferring one another.’ He worked out the
truth that the characteristics that were necessary to make a good
Christian were exactly those that werft necessary to make a good
bell linger, namely: 1, Unselfishness—forgetting self and obeying the
conductor; 2, Ambition—not being satisfied with present attainments;
3, Perseverance.

Fifty-four sat down to an excellent luncheon in the Old Castle
Hall (built before the year 1284). under the presidency of the Master
(Mr. J. G. Buchanan). The usual toasts were honoured.

Then followed the business meeting, at which were present twelve
more members, bringing the total membership present up to 65. The
meeting lasted two hours, and was most satisfactory.

After the election of officers it was agreed that the annual festival
in 1922 be held at Hereford on Whit-Monday, June 5th.

The following inscription was approved for the tenor of All Saints',
Hereford, which is to be recast in memory of fallen ringers:—

‘ To the Glory of God, and in memory of ringers of the Diocese who
fell in the great war, 1914—1918, this bell was recast by the Here-
ford Diocesan Guild of Bell Ringers.—Geoffry W. Turner, hon. sec.’

RINGER'S DEATH IN AUSTRALIA.

MR. MATTHEW ELLSMORE DIES AT SYDNEY.

It is’wilh deep regret that we have to announce the death of Mr.
Matthew Ellsmore, at Sydney, Australia, on May 3Ist. He left Eng-
land at the beginning of the year, and took with him the addresses
of many ringing friends in Australia. Soon after his arrival there,
however, he was seized with pneumonia, and passed away. Mr. E. J.
Harding, of Portsmouth, received letters from him dispatched from
various ports on the way out, and Mr. Ellsraore was anxiously looking
forward to having some ringing, although 71 years of ago. He rang
his last peal of Bob Major at West Meon on September 18th, 1920, in
3 hours 5 minutes. His last pull in EnsTana was at St. Mary’s.
Portsea, on January 24th, when he rang touches in the Standard
melliods, and a touch of Double Norwich, which was the first in the
borough by a local band—a record of which he was very proud. Mr.
Ellsmore was of a very happy disposition, and endeared himself to all
with whom he camo in contact. He was ever ready to impart his
knowledge of ringing to any who desired to learn, and was especially
happy to relate his experiences in ringing towers with the late Rev.
g. E. Robinson. His ringing friends will be very sorry to hear of his
ecease.

A WORTHY PERFORMANCE.

Tlie excellent performance of Mr. H. J. Poole, in calling, as his
first peal as conductor, a peal of Cambridge Surprise from a working
bell, when only 18 years of age, induces Mr. Arthur Edwards, of
Boreham, to say that he called-a one-part peal of Grandsire Triples
(Penning’s) at the same age, and three month'6 later Holt's Original,
which he conducted again on his 19th birthday. Readers will agree
with Mr. Edwards that the calling of one-part peals of Triples is
about as big a tax upon a conductor as anything in the calling lino
can be. Mr. Edwards has made something of a hobby of one-part
peals, for with tho exception of six-part peal of Oxford Bob—for a
special occasion, composed and rung by men of the horticultural pro-
fession—all the peals of Triples he ha6 conducted have been one-part
peals, including Carter’s one-part peal of Stedman, and a one-part pea)
of Union Triples. Holt's Original has been called from each bell
round the tower, and from an inside pair of handbells.

Such a record is a very worthy one.
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METHOD CONSTRUCTION.
THE EXTENSION OF DOUBLE NORWICH.
By GEORGE BAKER.

Anyone who knows anything of method construction will quickly
recognise that the following leads arc the correct extensions of Double
Norwich to teu and twelve bells.

The construction of the methods given iu Shipway as Double Nor-
wich Royal and Maximus can claim about us much relationship to the
Major method as chalk can to cbeeé6e.

ROYAL. MAXIMUS.
1254567890 1234567890f.t
2143658709 2143658709th
2413567890 2413567890et
-1231658709 4231658709te
2436157890 2436157890et
4263518709 4263518709te
2436581790 2436581790kt
4263857109 426385710Jh'K
2436587019 2136587019ET
4263850791 4263850791tk
46-28305971 243658709tle
6482039517 42638507t9k1
4628309157 (628305t7e91
6482031975 648203t5k719
4628013957 4628305tk179
6482109375 645203t51k97
-1681203957 4G2830t15e79
6418029375 6482031te597
6148203957 4628013t5e79
1684029375 648210t3e597

4681203t5e79
1860492735 6U802t3e597
6148J03t5e79
168402t3e597
18604t2e3957

An examination will prove that every shunt of ihe Major is repro-
duced in the Royal, plus a similar shunt for the two extra bells, and
again iu the Maximus every shunt of the Major and lioyal is repro-
duced, plus an extra shunt for the additional belle. Here we have
a concrete example of extension from 8 to 12 bells, but we must by
no means think wo huve round blocks in each instance that will give
us methods. The Major and Maximus aro perfect methods, but a
method of Royal with the lead-head of 1860492735 is an impossibility,
we have here simply a tTYree-part touch, which anyone can prove by
transposition. | have very little doubt that sonic of our composers
are clever enough to obtain peals of Royal from these three leads, but
Double Norwich Royal as a method does not anfl never did exist.

From the above wo can deduce the axiom that all the shunts in a
Major method must be reproduced in extending to Royal and Maxi-
mus, jdus similar shunts if necessary for the additional bells. Another
important truth not to be lost sight of is the fact that every method
0l even numbers of bells must have equal numbers of odd and even
changes.

WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.
GUILDFORD DISTRICT.

A very successful meeting was held at Binsted on Saturday, Julv
16th. ringers being present from Aldershot, Bentley, Binsted ‘ Black-
moor, Godalming, Guildford (two towers), Sliere, Scale and.Farnham,
and visitors from Farnborough and Swindon. Service was held in the
church at 5 p.m., conducted by the Vicar (tho Rev. W. G. Thomp-
son). who gave an excellent address. A capital tea was partaken of
1 the Institute, the Vicar presiding, after which a short business
meeting was held, Mr. W. R. Melville being in the chair, the Vicar
being unable to stay.—The usual vote of thanks was to the
Vicar and organist.—Several touclies of Minor and Doubles were
brought round during the afternoon and evening. Tile bells at Froyle
and Bentley were also rung during the evening.

' FEN DITTON OUTING.

S*. Mary’s Society, Fen Ditton, held tlieir annual outing on June
30th, when 26 ringers and friends spent an enjoyable time. They first
visited Chesterton, where 720 Kent Treble Bob Minor was rung by:
J- Martin 1, T. Ward 2, L. Mallion 3, E. G. Hibbins (conductor) '4,
A. Palmer 5, H. Newman 6. Proceeding to Strelham, 120 each of

new Double* St. Simon's, Stodmnn, aild Graudsire were brought
round. At Wilburton, 720. Oxford Bob was rung: J. Martin 1 T
Hard 2. 1l. Newman 3, L. Mallion 4, B. G. Hibbins (conductor) 5.

Neat.,, at Haddenham, short touches of Kent nnd
Main Bob were rung. The final tower visited was Sutton, where 720
1 lain Boh was brought, round by: J. Nicholks 1. T. Ward 2 H New-
man 3, A. Turner 4, A. Palmer 5. E. G. Hibbins (conductor) 6

M Wishbtach 6.
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LINCOLN .DIOCESAN GUILD.
GAINSBOROUGH AND LINCOLN DISTRICTS.

A combined meeting of the Gainsborough and Lincoln Districts wa*
held at Stow 011 Saturday week, a good number of ringers and friend*
being present from Gainsborough, Misterton. Scothorne, Lincoln and
Bigby, in addition to the local company.

The bells, and also those of Willingham Church, were available
during the day, and kept going in the standard methods. Service
was held at 4 p.m., at which the Rev. J. Barber (Rector of Stow)
officiated. The lesson was read by Mr. F. F. Linley (President of the
Northern Branch), and a very instructive and helpful address was de-
livered by the Rev. H. T. Parry (Rector of Bighy).

An excellent tea was provided in the Schoolroom, and was followed
by the business meeting, at which Mr. Linley presided, supported by
the two clergy mentioned.—Apologies for absence were announced from
Canon Hicks, Rev. A. B. Peirce, Messingham, and Mr. G. Chester,
Lincoln. .

Mrs. J. Barber (Stow) and Mr. E. Dawber (Gainsborough) were duly
elected honorary members.

After the routine of business had been disposed of, the Chair-
man gave a resume of tho financial position of the Northern Branch,
as compared with pre-war days, and followed with a very interesting
account of Stow Church, referring also to the different occasions upon
which church bells were rung in the past.

Votes of thanks to the incumbents and churchwardens of Stow and
Willingham for tho uso of the bells, the Rev. H. T. Parry for his
very helpful address, Miss Bowen for presiding at the organ, the lady
members of the local company, and all others who had helped toward
making the meeting such a success, and to the chairman for his most
interesting paper, were unanimously passed and duly responded to.

This brought flio business meeting to a close, after which the mem-
bers adjourned to the two towers for further ringing.

SALOP ARCHIDIACONAL GUILD.
MEETING AT COALBROOKDALE.
The half-yearly meeting of the Salop Archidiaconal Guild was held
at Holy Trinity, Coalbrookdale, on Saturday week. Forty-seven mem-

bers and friends attended, and the following towers were represented:
Cardington

St. Chad’s and St. Mary’s, Shrewsbury; Ellesmere,
Cound, Malinslee, Highfield. The Rev. F. Tennison, hon. secretary
(St. Alkmund's, Shrewsbury), the Rev. Preb. 0. B. Crowe (Vicarl

and Messrs. Herbert Hughes aud Frederick Johnson (churchwardens),
of Coalbrookdale, wero also present. Ringing commenced immediate-
ly after the marriage of Mr. lvan Adamson (eldest- son of Mr. and
Mrs. A. J. Adamson, of Wallasey Park, near Liverpool), and JU68
Marjorie Doughty (second daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Doughty,
of Coalbrookdale). The crowd of people in the church and the im-
mediate neighbourhood, together with the firing of fog signals and
the bells, all went to prove the very high esteem in which both parties-
are held. Ringing went on at intervals during the afternoon, short
touches being the order of the day. Four ladies took part in ths
ringing, viz., Mrs. K. C. Buss and the Misses Phyllis aud Muriel Har-
ley, of Cardington; also Miss Beatrice Bennett, Coalbrookdale.

Forty-two members and friends sat down to tea at Trinity Hall,
after which the business meeting took place, the Vicar being in the
chair. He and his wardens referred to the real pleasure it was to
welcome the visitors to Coalbrookdale, and they also spoke most
highly of their own local ringers.

It was decided to hold the next monthly meeting at the Clive, where
there is a peal of six (tenor 25 cwt.). The next quarterly meeting, as
arranged at the annual meeting, will be at Ellesmere.

Tlie Hon. Secretary, in moving a vote of thanks to the Vicar and
wardens for the kindly way they had received the gathering, re-
ferred to tho Vicar's recent appointment as prebendary, and said this
was a great honour to the Rev. C. B. Crowe and Coalbrookdale.—The
Vicar, in replying, said the honour was. not of his own seeking.
He told the company that he had spent his happiest days during the
past 23 years moving amongst his own parishioners.

The meeting over, a return was made to the tower by some, while
others took advantage of the beautiful surroundings, and indulged in
boating on the River Severn. The bells wore kept going till nearly
nine o'clock to the tune of Grandsire, Stedman, Plain Bob'and Kent
Treble Bob.

A BIRTHDAY COMPLIMENT.

On Tuesday, July 12th, a quarter-pcal of Grandsire Doubles was rung
at the Church of St. James, Southbroom, Devizes, as a compliment
to ifr. H. Brownlee West, the Master of tho tower, who attained hi*
78th birthday on that day, and who has been acting as tower master
for the past 13 years. Mr. West, since bis retirement from tile hon.
secretaryship of the Devizes Branch of the Salisbury Diocesan Guild,
has been made a vice-president. The quarter-peal was rung in 42
mins. bv: S. Sutton 1, S. Hillier (conductor) 2, W. Swift 3, G. W.
England 4. C. D. Heginbotham 5, F. Tilley 6.
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A Page for Sunday Service Ringers.

Two figures got transposed in the 504 Grandsire Triples on this
Dago last week. The third course end should have been 243576, not
243567, as printed.

THREE YEARS' LABOUR ON A METHOD COLLECTION.

On Sunday morning, July 17th, a very interesting little incident
took place in the belfry of the Parish Church, of Norton-le-Moors,
Staffs when Mr. J. E. Wheeldon presented io the tower a largo
-C'ampanological Method Book, in case, which he has himself written
out, containing 117 methods, consisting of Plain Methods, Treble Bob,
Third and Fourth Place Delights and Surprise Methods. Mr. Wlieel-
don has been engaged O0Il this I>o0k iu his spare time for the last
sthree years, and has presented it to oommemorate his 2Ist year as
leader of Norton belfry, where, during that period, he has spent so
many happy hours in the fascinating art of campanology.

During that period lie has served under four Rectors, with whom
he has always worked very harmoniously, and has been very for-
tunate in having a good body of young men in the belfry, who have
taken up the art of change ringing with assiduity.

The Rector (the Rev. J. G. Hamlet, B.A.), in accepting the gift 01l
behalf of the church, said it gave him very great pleasure to receive
such a useful book, for it would be present in tire belfry for future
generations to refer to when engaged in either plain or complicated
methods, there being methods in the book to suit either the novice or
the expert. The time spent 01l this book by Mr. Wheeldon must have
been enormous, and he complimented him upon the neatness of exe-
cution. He had 110 doubt of the exactitude of the work. He thankiMi
Mr. Wheeldon for his great energy, faithfulness and sincerity as
leader of Norton belfry for the last 21 years, and hoped he wouH*
be pared for many years to serve them as he had done in the past.

Mr. W. C. Lawrence, 01l behalf of the ringers, said how grateful
they all were for this useful addition to the campanological literature
of the belfry and said they would always look upon it with pride,
for there bad always been friendly relations between the leader and
ringers of Norton belfry; lie sincerely hoped Mr. Wheeldon would
he tibln to be with them for a long time yet to come.

SUNDAY SERVICE TOUCHES.

SHOREHAM.—Sussex County Association.—On Sunday, July 24t>
for morning service, at the Church of St. Mary, a quarter-peal (1,260
changes) of Stedman Triples, in 48 mins.. F. W. Cripps 1. H. Stalham
2, R. Noakes 3, E. Marsh 4, F. Bennett 5, B. Challen 6, G."H. Daynes,
(conductor) 7, F. Gregory 8.

HALESWORTH, SUFFOLK.—OILl Sunday, July 24th, for evening
eservice, at St. Mary's Church, 700 Grandsire Triples: W. Pierce 1, J.
tarter 2, F. O. Lambert (conductor) 3, C. F. Sayer (Beccles) 4, K. It.
Goat65, J. Howard 6. C. Moss 7, J. Jolly 8.

WILLBSDEN GREEN.—Middlesex.—On Sunday, July 24ih, at St.
Mary’s Church, by the St. Mary’s Guild, a quarter-peal (1,264 changes)
of Bob Major, in 45 mins.. taken from G. H. Cross’s 5,056: A. French
1, H. Kilby 2, W. Mathews 3, G. Kilby 4. A Tennant 5, F. Crook 6.
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R. Kilby (first quarter-peal in the method) 7, C. Ebberson (conductor)

(Ashford) 4, Harry Parkes (Mersham) 5. 1irst Pe , . .
sire Doublek by ail except the conductor; also believed to be the hrst

0,EALINGIS- On Sunday, July 24th for morni® service
Stephen’s Church, 1,260 Grands.ro Triples A F. N Juta 1. * ' .
Walson 2, W. H. Stevens 3. B. Hams 4, H. Belcher $; K. AiacKii 1 o,
W H Hollier (conductor) 7, F. S. Palmer 8. o,

SHELLEY YORKS.—On Sunday morning, July 17th, tor
service 720 Oxford Treble Bob Minor: R. Sykes (conductor) 1 H.
Peace 2. G. Helliwell 3, F. Atkinson (Wragby) 4. H. Robeits 5, A

at 8t.

LONDON —On Sunday, July 16tli. for evening service, at St. John s,
Vassell Road, Kennington, S.E., a quarter-pcal of Stedman Triples.
G W. Wild 1 W. Rushton 2, E. J. King 3, J. R. Gamm®n 4 K. (.
chappele 5 G. A. Card 6. T. H. Taffender (conductor) 7. A. Coward 8.

FUtNINGHAM, KENT.—At the Parish Church, before morning
service on Julv 17th. 720 Bob Minor: W. Wingate 1, F. Mason 2
Capt" Shelton 3. A. Bates 4, E. Bates 5, T. Groombr.dge (conductor)
6. For evening service. 720 Bob Minor: W. \\mgate i J. Couchma"
2, A. Bates (conductor) 3, E. Bates 4, F. Mason 5, Capt. Shellton 6.

ILMINSTER—At St. Mary 6 Church, on Sunday, July loth, tor
matins, a quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples: George Sibley (conductor
1, Charles (Sommer 2. Victor_ Crabb 3’ 2r T?200rn™_,, v ATIN n
Bungav 5, Albert -- Grant 6. David G Taylor 7. Harry Raison 8. It
was the 2lst anniversary of the treble ringer s wedding day.
composition was one recently given on this page.

CROFTON YORKS—On Sunday afternoon, July 10th, alter the
unveiling and dedication of a beautiful granite obelisk as a war
memorial to the fallen of the parish, 720 Oxtord Treble Bob Minor
by tho Wragby ringers: F. Marsden 1, W. Green 2, J. Brewin 3, F.
Atkinson 4, J. Hewitt 5, A. Adams (conductor) 6. .

OXFORD.—On Sunday, July 10th, for evensong, at the Church ot
St. Ebbe, 720 Cambridge Surprise Minor: F. Beckett 1. Miss Willett
2, H. Miles 3, W. Harris 4, F. Clinkord ~ W. H. B '’ o™
ductor) 6 —On the 17th, for evensong, a 720 Oxford Treble Bob: F
Beckett 1 Miss Willett 2, W. H. B. Wilkins (conductor) 3, G- S on
4 F Clinkard 5, H. Miles 6.-On the 24th, for evensong. 720 Oxford
Single Bob: A. Barrett 1. Miss Willett 2, W. Harris 3. F Beckett 4
F Clinkard 5 W H. B. Wilkins (conductor) 6. Miss Willett, for
whom the abo've 720s were arranged, was paying a visit to the city
of Oxford from Cambridge, and these were her first 720s in all three
methods.

USEFUL TOUCHES FOR SERVICE RINGING.

1.260 GRANDSIRE TRIPLES. 1,239 STEDMAN CATERS

234567 231456789
462375 3 165243978 12 13 15
534762 1 563412 4 16
735246- 5 163254 4 5 16
357246 4 164352 16
253674 5 461253 5 16
532674 4 465152 16
275346 3 515264379 16
752346 4 .314562 16
467235 2 312465 16
674235 4 213564 5 16
S 256374 1 214365 16
672543 3
S 536472 1 267.
675324 3 231456
S 346275 |
P.L. 324567 165243 12 13 15 18
214365 5 18
A. Chambers. G. 1

560 DOUBLE NORWICH MAIJOR. 720 TREBLE BOB MINOR.
23456
23156 1 6
42356 1
34526 __ S 34256 1
42536 — 62345 2
352)6 — — 36245 1
52346 — 45236 3
23456 — s ' 24536 1
35524 3
DOUBLE NORWICH MAJOR. 45362 2
23456 1 4 5 6 34562 1
62554 3
32654 — — 45623 2
26354 — 36452 2
63254 — 43652 |
52364 — — 26435 2
54326 - 4 42635 1
23456 — — P.L. 23456 4
J. Hunt. F. Blood.
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A DORSET, DEVON AND SOMERSET TRIP.
AN EXCURSION IN THREE COUNTIES.

The motor charabanc is now the favourite.means ols
country, especially for a ringers’ outing, and by th'smoans toe Wylg
Regie (Weymouth) band mado a circular trip of 140 mdes tor tneir
annual outing on Saturday, July 16th. The party
including the Rector, curate and churchwardens, and adult members
of the choir, made a splendid tour by the best-car-in the fleet.of the
Wevmouth Motor Company. The venue was Exeter. The party W
, J , . an(i journeying via Upwey and Martinstown. picked up th<-
otdCnanReidLnVtatoAorne Abbas, the Via Iceniana (Ickme d
Street), from London to Exeter, through Bndport. The coimtry as
looking well, and despite the clouds hanging about some of the hills,
most delightful stretches of country were for ever bursting into view,
with Glimpses of silver sea. The ease and comfort of the travelling
on the Dorset heights helped to make the journey all the more plea-
sant. Chidcock Hill-a formidable obstacle to many veh”es of this
nature—was successfully negotiated, and then we sped on through
country of excelling beauty.

The first stop was made at Axminster. Here we made a dodge ,nto
L'lorious Devon, aud rang a toucli of Grandsire Triples on the fine old
peal (tenor 21 cwt.)i Bv a coincidence we met the ringers from
Alphington (Exeter) on their way to Weymouth, and due to « «
Wvke Regis in the afternoon. Journeying on through lovely country,
passing through Axminster Vale, a short stay was made at 'Homton,
and then on to Hcavitree. which was reached in scheduled time, viz.,
12 noon. A nice touch of Triples on 0110 of the finest rings oi eight
in Devon (tenor 26 cwt.) was brought round, the ringers being de-
lighted with the 1 go ' and tone of this lovely peal.

Afterwards we went into the city, where a substantial luncheon
awaited us at the White Lion Hotel. Mr. Gainer, of St Davids
tower piloted us to the old Cathedral .where we were also met by Mr.
Davev (Master of the Cathedral band). Permission having been
"iven by the Dean for us to view any part of the Cathedral, we were
most fortunate in having as our guide, the Rev. H. E. Bishop, one
of the greatest authorities on the building. The service Ming; at 3,
the ten bells were chimed, and these were listened to with great
interest. Messrs. Davev and Gardner next, piloted us to St. Davids,
and took part iu a touch of Triples. The Vicar of St. Davids wa«
formerly Rector of Wyke Regis. Unfortunately the reverend
gentleman was away, and thus missed seeing many of his old friends,
but he left a kind message of welcome.

The car was waiting for us outside the church at 4 p.m., wken we
began our homeward journey, which was made via Ottery St. Mary.
This church (said to be built to quarter-scale of the Cathedral) is one
of the most handBome in Devon, and has a fine peal of eight bells.
The party wa6é met here by Mr. Godfrey and some of his ringers. The
bells were raised in peal, and a well-struck touch of Triples was
brought round. Incidentally, it may be remarked we did not ex-
pcrience the trouble with the sexton, as our Taunton 4 brother
strings 7 did a few weeks ago, while on their outing.

Chard was next visited (by dodging into that- county of lovely
churches*, and especially noble towers, the pride of Somerset), and tea
was partaken of at the Temperance Hotel. Opportunity was taken
of thanking the hon. secretary for organising such a fine trip, and
his services were eulogised by the Rector and oilier members of the
party. Having rung on the somewhat heavy peal of eight, the journey
was continued to llminster, which has a beautiful church and tower
in the Decorated style, and a very fine peal of bells (tenor 22£ cwt.),
This was the last ringing place, and, with old friends of the local
band, some nice touches of Triples were brought round. The con-
ducting throughout the day was principally in the hands of Mr. L.
W. Wiflfen. The last place visited was Crewkerne, where it was too
late to ring, and after a look round and a refresher for the inner-
man we started Oll our 30-mile journey home, in the moonlight, across
tho Downs, Wyke Regis being eventually reached just before the mid-
night chimes struck. Everybody had a most happy and enjoyable
day that will long be remembered. It is worthy of mention that at
matins the next day the full octave of bells was rung.

The ringers wish through * The Ringing World,” to tender their
grateful thanks to all the incumbents who so willingv granted the
use of their bells, and to those ringers who gave such kind assistance,
particularly ‘Messrs. Davey and Gardner (Exeter), Laver (Heavitreeh
Godfrey (Ottery). Taylor and Crabb (llminster). and last but not
least, the general secretary of the Devon Guild (the Rev. E. S
Powell). C. H. J.

HAXDSWORTH. BIRMINGHAM.—On Friday, June 3rd. in honour
of H.M. the King's birthday, 1,260 Orandsire Triples, in 45 mins.: F.
Williams 1, W. G. Ellis (conductor) 2, B. Starkey 3. E. Mullins 4, C.
Starkey 5, S. Dauby 6, E. Wood 7, H. Wood 8.—Ou- Saturday, Juno
4th. 1,260 Grandsire Triples: F. Williams 1, E. Mullins 2, E. Starkey
3. C. Starkey 4, W. G. Ellis (conductor) 5, S. Danby 6. E. Wood 7.
Tt. Wood 8.

THE RINGING WORLD.

457

NOTICES.

‘ The Ringing World ' can be sent direct by post from
the Editorial Office for 4/- per quarter.

The Editorial O ffrice Of the “Ringing W oritd, tO
which all communications should be sent, iS 63, Com-
mercial Road. W oking.

THE CHARGE FOR NOTICES of Meetings inserted
under this heading is at the rate of sd. per line (average &
words) per insertion, with a minimum charge of 1/6.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND YOUTHS.
—Meetings for practice;:—St. Martin’s, first Monday in
the month, at 7.30 p.m.; St. Bride's, second Saturday,
5 p.m.; Shoreditch, 3rd Wednesday, 7.30 p.m. Services,
2nd and 4th Sundays, 5 p.m.—J. W. Cornford, Hon. Sec.,.
7D, Morgan Mansions, N.7.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Manchester Branch'.
—The next meeting will be held at Reddish, on Saturday,
July 30th, as the 23rd is not suitable to the authorities.
Bells ready 3.30, meeting at 7 o’clock.—J. Hall, Branch
Sec., 22, Silver Street, Miles Platting.

LEEDS AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.— Monthly
meeting will be held at Rothwell, on July 30th. Business
meeting at 7 o'clock in the Belfry.—M. Moorhouse, Hon.
Sec.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Blackburn Branch.
—A meeting of the above branch will be held at Colne on
Saturday, July 30th. Bells ready at 3 o’clock. Meeting.
6.3c p.m.—J. Watson, Branch Sec., 33, Lacgham Road,
Blackburn.

ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE SOCIETY will hold their
Quarterly meeting on Saturday, July 30th, at the Church;
of St. Michael, Mottram-in-Longdendale. Bells ready at
3 p.m. Business meeting at 7.—C. Bower, Hon. Sec.

DONCASTER AND DISTRICT SOCIETY. — Meet-
ing at Bentley, July 30th. Bells from 3 to 8 p.m. Tea at
4.30, at is. 6d. per head, to those who notify Mr. P.
Elton, 59, Bentley Road, Doncaster, before July 26th.
Arksey (8) and Doncaster St. George’'s bells available
from 7 to 9 p.m. A good attendance is desired.  Until
further notice the bells at St. George’s, Doncaster, will be
available for combined practice every Thursday at 7 p.m.
—Harold Walker, Hon. Sec.

DEVONSHIRE GUILD OF RINGERS.—North-East
Branch. — A meeting will be held at Huntsham (8) cn
Saturday, July 30th. Bells available from 2.30; service at
4.45; tea at nominal charge of 6d.—Rev. E.jV. Cox, Hon.
Sec., Bampton Vicarage, Devon.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL ASSOCIATION. —
Wotton-under-Edge Brauch.—The next meeting will be
held at Slimbridge on Saturday, July 30th. Bells from-
3p.m. Teab5 o'clock. Business meeting to follow.—W.
A. Lewis, Branch Hon. Sec., Ham, Berkeley, Glos.

NORWICH AND IPSWICH ASSOCIATION.—
For the Diocese of Norwich and Archdeaconry of Suffolk.
—A joint meeting of the Norwich and Ipswich Branches,
willbe held at Lowestoft on August Bank Holiday, Aug. ist.
By kind permission of the Rector the ring of 8 bells at St.
Margaret’s, Lowestoft, will be available. Dinner will be
served at the Crown Hotel, High Street, at 1 p.m. Tickets
3/6 per head. Committee meeting at 12 o’clock noon.
The general business meeting will beheld at St. Margaret’s
Institute, Alexandra Road, at 2.15 p.m.—Edward Evans,
Branch Sec., Ipswich ; Arthur L. Coleman, Gen. Sec. and
Branch Sec.,Norwich,High Croft, North Walsham,Norfolk.
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SUFFOLK ASSOCIATION.—A meeting will be held
mat Sudbury on Monday, August ist.  The bells of All
Saints’, St. Peter’s and St. Gregory’s will be available for
ringing during the day. Meet at All Saints’ first at 1!
a.m. Tea arrangements will be made on the day, busi-
ness following.—A. Symonds, Hon. Sec., Lavenham.

PETERBOROUGH AND DISTRICT ASSOCIA-
TION.—The annual meeting will be held at Peterborough
on Monday, August ist (Bank Holiday). Bells available :
#St. John’s (8), St. Mary’s (6), Woodston (6) for part of the
«day. Service at St. John’s at 3.30. Tea is. 6d., and
*meeting in St. Mary’s Schools 4.15. All ringers wel-
come. — John J. Jutson, Hon. Sec., St. Mary’s School
House, Peterborough.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—North and East District.
— A meeting will be held at Hadley on August Bank
Holiday, Monday, August ist. The bells (now a peal of
eight) will be available from 2 p.m. Tea will be arranged
at about 6 o’'clock in the Church House, at a charge of 1/-
per head. Barnet bells available for ringing irom 2 to
4 p.m. and possibly after tea. All members and friends
are cordially invited.—C. T. Coles, Hon. Sec., 49, Wood
Street, E.17.

WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD. — Guildford
'‘District.—The Annual summer meeting will be held at
Ranmore, near Dorking, on Bank Holiday, Monday,
August ist, by the kind permission of Lord Ashcombe.
The beautiful grounds of the Denbies will be thrown open
to ringers and friends during the afternoon. Tea and
refreshments may be obtained near the church. The bells
swill be available from 2 to 6 p.m.—E. Raddon, Hon. Sec.,
‘Hillcrest, Baillie Road, Guildford.

WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.—Yorktown
District.—An Allrday meeting will we held on Monday,
*August ist, commencing at Walton-on-Thames, at 10
moclock, Hersham 11.30, Esher 1.30, East Molesey 3.
Service at 5 o'clock. Tea by kind permission (if fine), on
the Vicarage Lawn. All ringers welcome.—G. Miles,
Hon. Sec., Owlsmoor, Camberley.

ST. MARY’'S, BEDDINGTON, SURREY.— This
tower will be open as usual on Bank Holiday from 2.30.
All ringers welcome.—A. J. Trappitt, Steeplekeeper.

WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD. — Isle of
'Wight Branch.—Next meeting All Saints', Freshwater,
Monday, ist Aug. Bells (6) available 2.30. Service 4
p.m. Tea and meeting 5 p.m.—W. Upton, Hon. Dist.
Sec., 10, EIm Grove, Newport, I.W.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION. — Lewisham Dis-
trict.—The next meeting of this district will be held oh
Saturday, August 6th, at Farningham. Bells at 3 p.m.
Service and address by the Rev. F. Snaith (Vicar) at
5.30 p.m. Tea at the Lion Hotel and business meeting to
follow. Those requiring tea must notify me by Tuesday,
August 2nd, the latest. Half fares up to 2s. paid. — T.
Groombridge, Hon. District Sec., 35, Albany Road,
-Chislehurst. .

ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS
(established 1637).— Meetings for practice will be held at
'St. Magnus on August 4th and 18th; *St. Paul’s Cathe-
dral on the 9th ; Southwark Cathedral on the 16th ; *St.
Michael’s, Cornhill, on the 23rd, and St. Andrew, Holborn,
on the 25th ; all at 7.30 p.m. *Business meeting after-
wards at headquarters.—William T. Cockerill, Hon.
«Sec., 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.W .4.
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LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Rochdale Branch.
—The next monthly meeting will be held at Hamer on
Saturday, August 6th. Bells ready at 3; meeting at 6.30.
A good attendance is requested; business important.—
T. K. Driver, Middleton.

SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Central Div-
ision.—Meeting at Crawley, Aug. 6th. Tower open at 2.
Short service at 4.30. Tea at 5 (by kind invitation of the
Rector). Those desiring tea should notify the undersigned
not later than Tuesday, Aug. 2nd. —A. D. Stone, 16,
Belgrave Street, Brighton.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—South and West District.—
A meeting will be held at St. Peter’s, Staines, by the kind
invitation of the Vicar (Rev. F. Marriott) on Saturday,
Aug. bth. Bells available from 3.30 p.m. Service at 5.
Tea at 5.30. Those requiring tea must let me know by
Aug. ist.—W. H. Hollier, Hon. Sec., 29, Duke Road,W .4.

SALISBURY DIOCESAN GUILD.—Devizes Branch.
—Next meeting at Seend on August 6th. Bells (6) avail-
able from 3 o’clock, tea at 5. All wishing to attend tea let
me know as early as possible—H. F. Brown, 45, West
End, Westbury, Wilts.

HEREFORD DIOCESAN GUILD. — Hereford Dis-
trict.—A Quarterly meeting will be held at Fownhope on
Saturday, August 6th. Bells (6), available 3.30. Service
5 p.m. Tea, Schoolroom 5.45, 1/- each to those notifying
me not later than August 2nd.—C. Edwards, Gt. Brampton,
Madley, Hereford.

SHEFFIELD AND OLD EA8T DERBYSHIRE
AMALGAMATED SOCIETY.—The next meeting will
be held at Bolsterstone on Saturday, August 6th, 8 bells.
Tea may be obtained close to the Church.—Sam Thomas,
Hon. Sec., 164, Greyatones Road, Sheffield.

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION. — Practices:
Mondays 7.30 p.m., St. Clement Danes, Aug. 8th and 22nd ;
Bishopsgate 29th ; Sundays at 10 a.m., St. Clement’s ist
and 3rd; Bishopsgate 2nd and 4th. Summer outing,
Saturday, Sept. 10th. Full particulars later.— A. D.
Barker, Hon. Gen. Sec., Oak Cottage, Farnburn Avenue,
near Slough. *

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION,—Maidstone Dis-
trict.—The Half-yearly meeting will be held at Ightham
on Saturday, August 13th. Bells available at 3.30. Short
service at 4.45. Tea at the George and Dragon at 1/3
each. Worotham bells available for ringing at 6 o’clock.
A motor bus will leave the Cannon, High Street, Maid-
stone, at 2.30. Those intending goiDg by bus and wanting
tea must let the Secretary know not later than Monday,
August 8th. Half fares paid up to 2/- at this meeting.—
S. Hazelden, Hon. Dis. Sec., Lower St., East Farleigh.

BARNSLEY AND DISTRICT ASSOCIATION.—The
monthly meeting will be held at Monk Bretton on Satur-
day, August 13th. Bells ready early. Tea will be pro-
vided at a reasonable price to those applying before
August 10th. Bus route from Barnsley and Cudworth to
Monk Bretton every half-hour.—C. D.'Potter, Secretary,
119, Doncaster Road, Barnsley.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Rochester Dis-
trict. — The Annual District meeting will be held at
Rochester on Baturday, August aotH. The new ring of 10
will be available from 3 to 4, and after tea until 9. Further
particulars next week.—Fred M. Mitchell, Hon. Dist. Sec..
66, Peacock Street, Gravesend.
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CHANGE OF ADDRESS.—Mr. Edwin Shepherd
has removed to 56, Springfield Road, Exeter.

PUBLICATION,

‘* AMONG THE BEI.LS.” — The Ringing Career
late Rev. F. E. Robvinson, M.A., Vicar of Drayton,
Berks, Master of the Oxford Diocesan Guild. Part I. to
XX. may be had singly at 6d. net. Unbound numbers
I. to XX. complete. 8s. 6d. Or the whole work bound in
cloth for 10s. fid. net. From Mrs. Fair
Home, Wokingham.

Robinson,

MISCELLANEOUS PERFORMANCES.

BROMLEY.—Kent. County Association.—On Tuesday, July 5th, at
the Church ot’SS. Peter and Paul, Bromley, a quarter-peal of Sted-
man Triples, in 43 mms.: P. J. Spico 1, G. Darling 2, *J Ford 3 *J
Keep 4, It. BretuSmith S. G. Horsley 6, T. Groombridge, Benr. (con-
ductor), 7, B. Mounter 8. * First quarter-peal of Stedman.
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Cleioelllns

S .lames, cm,

S HORNE, KENT.—At the Church of SS. Peter and Paul, on Thurs-

day evening, July 14th. after an unsuccessful attempt for a peal, as a
birthday compliment to Miss R. M. Goodship, Reading, 1,800 changes
of Minor, in seven methods, being 240 Cambridge Surprise, 720 Wood-
bine Treble Bob, 240 each of Kent and Oxford, and 120 each of
Canterbury Pleasure, Oxford Bob and Plain Bob: J. Avis 1, Miss *
M. Goodship 2, F. M. Mitchell (conductor) 3, H. Argent 4 Col.-Ser"t.
J. Bennett, R.M., 5. J. Buries 6. Longest length of Minor b}(] A
mGoodship. n '
CIRENCESTER, GLOS.—On Thursday, July 14th, at ihe Parish
Church, a quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples: R. W. Watts 1, W G
Cook 2, K W. Bond 3, H. C. Bond 4, F. J. Lewis 5, ft. Hicks 6. W.
Upton (conductor) 7, J. Hayward 8. Arranged for W. Upton, from
Carisbrooke, Isle of Witrht.
an! kSSEX.--On Saturday, July 16th, on the occasion of the
annual flower show the following touches were brought round: 656
Double Norwich, 576 Superlative, 504 Stedman. 288 Oxford, the fol-
lowing takmg part: J. D. Buckingham, F. Chalk, E. W. Beckwith .}

GaHEWEN and w. ¥¥able (conductor). J. Sadler, W. Elliott,V
MGitfay! 3y 1SITNB 7 BlalfiReCrurGlaPler belt Nt BiaFy&RactSh QD

G R %o ong2 3, BTLaw 4. 5. pannott 51T AC EBERINSEN {!

Daynes? (conduclor) 7' »e A- Fosdike 8. Composed by G. H.
19thASJ f Lanoashir® Association. — On Tuesday. July
mins m n r T V7P 0f><d Treble B> Minor. ,, 26
sz fidi 12d% 1, Turner 2- 3 1
Ivisu Shl1

ALFRED BQWELIZ
CHUSOH BEIL FOUNDER,
JpsSW ieH.

The Centra! Council Publications

LIST OF PUBLICATIONS
RE Yec 02 ao eTPV A AvwFpee ~ the Hon Librarian
C- Wk °- JEIrKYN, ‘éroacUands, Cavershara, Reading
ON THE PRESERVATION OF BELI S
GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

Monpr" Pnl'rl £°R AN ASSOCIATION.!
OR A LOCAL COMPANY . N ]
RULES AND DECISIONS OF THE COUNPII

w

Cowwn s

coiScrYoi?2!Ts?2r? <D'“b, u
Do 1 (0<ld—Bell T « b I-

COU.ECTWJ n

COLLECTION OF PEALS-Section Ill (Double Norwich) |

irik» £» «

o0 o

CHURCH BELLS SINGLY OR
IN RINGS.

Bell Frames in Cast Iron, Steel
and Oak.

Balls tuned on the latest im*
proved principles initiated by
the late Canon Simpson.

CASTLE GREEN
—- BRISTOL —
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JOHN WARNER & SONS

LIMITED,

Bcllfoundcrs and

BcllDanqgcrs,

THE SPITALFIELDS BELL FOUNDRY,

SPELMAN STREET,

LONDON, E.IL

fly Royal Warrant to H.M. King George V.

O ESTABLISHED 1763. a

The Jasper 5nowdon Series,

REVISED PRICES.
1 BiOPB-SIGHT, 1». 10d.; sixth ed.; 150 p&eee; treat* Plain Bob oom-
menolag on three Mia.
ORAJTDSIRt],' Ea 10d.; aeoond ed.; 204 pagea, commencing on five
bella, oomplete with the Thompaon Charts, eto.
KANDARD METHODS. 6th Edition, b 10d.
WTBIU1AN, B». 10d.; 275 pa*ee bj the Rev. C. D. P. Dariea, M.A..
with an appendix by the late Sir Arthur Heywood, Bart., eto.
' TREBLE BOB, 1., la. 10d.; aecon<d ed.; with appendix; 100 oloeely
printed pagee.
PART n.—At present oot of print.
DOUBLE NORWICH 0. B. Major.—Out ol print at praaent
AH poet free, on reoept of poetel order from

MrB. LAURA SNOWDON, Cartmel, Lancashire.

BELL ROPES

John Astley & Sons

LIMITED,
COVENTRY.
m a k e k ;s s ince 1730.
RINGERS!

Please send your enquiries.
SATISFACTION GUARANTEED.
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“The World's Best Bellropes”

PROVED IN THE RINGING OF THE
WORLD’'8 RECORD PEAL.

THB SAME BXCBLLBNT QUALITY AS
BEFORE THB WAR. SEND YOUR
ORDBRS AND LET US CONVINCE YOU.

Splicing and Repairs
JOHN PRITCHARD.

Price List
of the Swan Street,
Sole Maker, LOUGHBOROUGH.

Established over a HUNDRED YEARTtt.

Unigue for Presentation.
An Inkstand in the design of aWell-shaped Bell

Thla oharmIng model in Solid Hall Marked Silver
wilU make a moat appropriate aad oaeful Gift.

It can be supplied in the following sizes:—
Diameter 2iin. 2jin. 3jin. 3%in. 4m. 4$in. 5in
Price 22/- 33/- a0/- a8/- e0/- 75/- o08/-
Monogram or Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Charges

| fIH M
- V U

P P P
ij1Jjijx

Goldsmith and
1),

VWOKING
(MAKER OF THE RINGERS BADGE.)

THOMA8 POBLE A SON, Ohuroh Bell*

Bangers, TAUNTON.—Bells Hung on the
most apDroved principles Old Bells Re-oast,
New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make.
Ellacombe’s Chiming Apparatus fixed, Hand.
bell3 m sets Ohromatio or Diatonic-

THE BADGE OF THE CRAFT
A Beautifully Executed

RINGERS®  PENDANT

In Qold, Silver or Bronze.
Specially Suitable for difta.
Prices, Gold (9 carat) 3s/-, Silver /8
Bronze 3/6 (post free).

J. COMBER, Goldsmith and Jeweller

H
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